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To the Members of 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

DRAGO NW A VE HFCL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

1. Opinion 

Tel: 23370091,23378795 
23370892,23378794 

Web. : www.kjco.net 
E-mail : delhi@kjco.net 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of DRAGONWAVE HFCL INDIA PRIVATE 
LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in Equity 
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standabne financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

2. Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to · 
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

3. Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report 
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report and Shareholder's 
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report 
thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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4. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

5. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with Sas will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with as, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit: We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of tlie standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
es!i[nates and related disclosures made by management. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our 
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

A. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable. 

B. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 

:;:r~· ; J11_arch, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. ,;1:>;/;;;;, 
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure B". 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, 
the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the 
Company. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Khandelwal Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 105049W 

:I-., --•---------

Partner 
Membership No. 502570 
UD IN: 2-e> SD 9.-- s'q-o 0 {\A4'tfl r C:::/J1;3 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 01 st June, 2020 



:,::.: 

I 

KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO. 
BRANCH OFFICE : 
GF- 8 & 9, HANS BHAWAN 
1, BAHADUR SHAH ZAFAR MARG, 
NEW DELHl-110 002 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Tel: 23370091,23378795 

23370892,23378794 
Web. : www.kjco.net 
E-mail : delhi@kjco.net 

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Annexure referred to in paragraph 6A of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the 
Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the Members of DragonWave HFCL India Private 
Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020, we report that; 

I. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situations of its Fixed Assets. 

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and there is a 
regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets and as informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification. 

( c) According to the information and explanation given by the management, there are no immovable 
properties included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the 
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

II. According to the information and explanation given by the management, the Company's business did 
not involve holding of inventory. Accordingly, requirements under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

III. As per the information furnished, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to 
companies, firms and other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(iii) (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable. 

IV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in 
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, where applicable, complied with the 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

V. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any 
deposits within the meaning of the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under .Hence provision of clause- 3(v) are not 
applicable to the Company. 

VI. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not 
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the 
products of the Company. 

VII. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the 
Company is generally regular in depositing, with the appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory 
dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, 
custom duty, cess and other material statutory dues wherever applicable. According to information 
and explanation given to us, and as per the records examined by us, no undisputed arrears of 
statutory dues outstanding as at 31st March, 2020 from the date they became payable. 

(b )According to the information and explanation given to us and records examined by us, there are 
no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, custom duty & cess or any other statutory dues which 
have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

VIII. According to the information and explanations given. to us and records examined by us, as at the 
Balance Sheet date the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institution or 
banks or debenture holders. 

J<~E~AD OFF\'', E: 6-B & C, PIL COURT, 6TH FLOOR, 111, M. K. ROAD, CHURCH GATE, MUMBAl-400 020 
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IX. Based on our examinations of the records and information given to us, no money was raised byway 
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and no term loan has been 
taken during the year by the Company. 

X. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 

XI. According to the information and explanation given to us, the provision of section 197 read with 
Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence report under paragraph 3(xi) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company .Accordingly, paragraphs 3(xii) of the order is not applicable. 

XIII. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have been 
disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

XIV. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company during the year has not made 
any preferential allotment as private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) is not applicable. 

XV. According to the information and explanation given to us and certified by the management the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with 
him and hence provision of clause 3(xv) are not applicable to the company. 

XVI. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934 and hence the provision of clause 3(xvi) are not applicable to the company. 

For Khandeiwal Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

__ FirmRegistration.No:105049.W 

Mao;,~ 1§/' 
Partner \'I 

\v<.'"' Membership No. 502570 {,:C,;; . · 
UDIN:x, 0 ~ A-IIAAl\y.,i(!;q<, 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 01st June, 2020 
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause m of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

To the Members of 
Dragon Wave HFCL India Private Limited 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ofDragonWave HFCL India 
Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of 
Internal financial control over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation ofreliable financial information, as required underthe Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on audit 
of Internal financial controls over financial reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the standards on 
auditing as specified under Section 143 (10) of the companies act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both 
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the guidance note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate Internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for,ollr audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

{Nlk~I· 
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A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial 
statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the Company; (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Nate on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 105049W 

~ 
Manish Kumar Singha! 
Partner 
Membership No. 502570 
UDIN: ?o 0 ~~A GI AAA l<-

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 01st June, 2020 
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(All amounts are in Rs.) 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020 

Particulars 

Assets 

Non-current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 

(b) Right-of-use asset 

(c) Other Intangible assets 

(d) Financial Assets 

(i) Loan Receivables 

(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 

Total Non-current Assets 

Current Assets 

(a) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 

(ii) Cash & cash equivalents 

{iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 

{iv) Others 

(b) Current Tax Assets {Net) 

(c) Other current assets 

Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Equity 

{a) Equity Share capital 

(b) Other Equity 

Total Equity 

Liabilities 

Non-current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) lease Liabilities 

{b) Provisions 

Total Non-current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade Payables 

(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

{b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 

(ii) lease liabilities 

(iii) Others 

(b) Other current liabilities 

(c) Provisions 

Total Current liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Total Equity and liabilities 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

New Delhi, 01 June, 2020 

Note No. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

5 

17 

18 

5 

19 

20 

21 

Asat 
March 31 2020 

Director 
DIN: 01709943 

6,91,330 

33,21,283 

98,513 

6,50,00,000 

11,63,380 

7,02,74,506 

74,40,077 

38,16,569 

22,26,144 

68,85,375 

26,71,217 

2,30,39,382 

9,33,13,888 

7,00,00,000 

89,12,834 

7,89,12,834 

21,32,566 

29,39,925 

50,72,491 

10,99,973 

14,42,171 

40,29,426 

21,34,588 

6,22,405 

93,28,563 

1,44,01,054 

9,33,13,888 

Asat 
March 31 2019 

7,11,028 

5,16,026 

7,60,538 

19,87,592 

2,44,88,699 

6,34,97,205 

2,00,00,000 

10,14,238 

51,49,188 

16,22,364 

11,57,71,694 

11,77,59,286 

7,00,00,000 

4,02,79,095 

11,02,79,095 

22,05,366 

22,06,366 

19,16,383 

25,20,439 

7,68,225 

68,778 

52,73,825 

74,80,191 

11,77,59,286 

Director 

DIN: 00550825 

✓ ~ 
Yo~pta 

Company Secretary 

New Delhi, 01 June, 2020 
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Dragonwave HFCL India Private Limited- Financial Statements 
(CIN: U64Z00DL2010PTC211117) 
(All amounts are in Rs.) 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

Particulars Note No. 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

I. INCOME 

Revenue from operations 22 79,03,620 2,42,42,228 

Other Income 23 41,09,995 2,43,03,432 

Total Revenue {I) 1,20,13,615 4,85,45,660 

II. EXPENSE 

Other Direct cost 24 55,68,293 1,28,85,565 

Employee benefits expense 25 2,29,64,755 2,13,17,074 

Finance Cost 26 5,99,418 1,67,867 

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 4,5&6 22,14,678 7,40,393 

Other Expenses 27 1,22,17,602 1,51,73,057 

Total Expenses (II) 4,35,64,746 5,02,83,956 

Ill Profit/ (loss) before exceptional Items and Income tax (1-11) (3,1S,51,131) (17,38,296) 

IV Exceptional items (net of tax) 

V Profit/ (loss} before tax (Ill - IV) (3,15,51,131) (17,38,296) 

VI Tax expense 

Current tax (86,868) 

Deferred Tax 4,02,842 1,63,856 

VII Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V - VI) (3,11,48,289) (16,61,308) 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income ('OCI') 

A.) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(i) remeasurement of defined benefit plans; (2,17,972) 17,099 

Other comprehensive income for the year after tax {VIII} (2,17,972) 17,099 

IX Total comprehensive income for the year {VII+ VIII} (3,13,66,261) (16,44,209) 

Earnings per equity share 28 

Basic & Diluted (4.45) (0.24) 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Khandelwal Jain & Co. 

Firm Reg. No. 105049W 

Chartered Accountants 

(Manish Kumar Singha!) 

Partner 

M.No. 502570 

New Delhi, 01 June, 2020 

For and on be~~~ard 

~_,_./U 
Jil~hary 

Director 

DIN: 01709943 

~y_(,~ 
Subodh Kumar Garg 

Director 

DIN: 00550825 

~~ 
Yogesh Gupta 

Company Secretary 

New Delhi, 01 June, 2020 



Dragonwave HFCL India Private Limited- Financial Statements 
{CIN: U64200DL2010PTC211117) 
(All amounts are in Rs.) 

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

Particulars 

I. Cash Flow From Operating Activities 

{Loss)/Profit before Tax 

Adjustments for 

Depreciation and Amortization expenses 

Profit on sale of Property, Plant and equipment 
Other Comprehensive Income 

Impairment allowance for trade receivables 

Interest income classified as investing cash flows 

Finance costs 

Operating cash flow before changes in working capital 

Change in operating assets and liabilities 
(lncrease)/Decrease in trade receivables 
lncrease/(Decrease) in trade payables 
(lncrease)/Decrease in other financial assets 
(lncrease)/decrease in other current assets 
lncrease/(decrease) in provisions 
lncrease/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 
lncrease/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 
Net cash generated from operations before tax 

Income taxes paid 

Net Cash from/(used) in Operating Activites 

II Cash flows from investing activities 
(Payments)/Proceeds for property, plant and equipment 
Loans to Body Corporates 
(lncrease)/decrease in Fixed deposit with Banks 
Interest received 

Net cash outflow from investing activities 

Ill cash flows from financing activities 
Repayment of borrowings 
Payment of Lease Liabilities 
Interest paid 

Net cash Inflow (outflow) from financing activities 

IV Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1+11+111) 

V Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 

VI Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (IV+V) 
Notes: 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 

(3,15,51,131) 

22,14,678 

(2,17,972) 
41,86,763 

(40,55,317) 

5,98,896 
(2,88,24,083) 

1,28,61,859 
(8,16,410) 
(3,61,268) 

(10,48,854) 
10,93,119 
15,08,987 
13,66,363 

(1,42,20,286) 

(17,36,187) 
(1,59,56,473) 

(3,01,342) 
(6,50,00,000) 
2,00,00,000 

32,04,679 
(4,20,96,663) 

(16,27,500) 

(16,27,500) 

{5,96,80,636) 
6,34,97,205 

38,16,569 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 

(17,38,296) 

7,40,393 

(1,70,581) 
17,099 

(53,87,345) 

1,67,867 
{63,70,863) 

(71,51, 796) 
(47,764) 

2,82,651 
(3,63,465) 
5,14,388 

(1,99,86,583) 
(3,31,23,432) 

(26,07,036) 
(3,57,30,468) 

6,14,566 

8,07,03,031 
60,36,928 

8,73,54,525 

(50,532) 

(1,67,867) 
(2,18,399) 

5,14,05,658 
1,20,91,548 

6,34,97,205 

1. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard~7, "Statement of Cash 

Flows". Components of cash and cash equivalents: 

2. Figures in brackets represents cash outflows. 

3. Components of cash and cash equivalents:-

Particulars 

Cash on hand 
Balance with banks-in current A/c 

Fixed Deposits with Bank ( Original maturity less than 3 months) 
Bank overdrafts 
Balances per statement of cash flows 

March 31, 

2020 
3,300 

38,13,269 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements 
As per our report of even date attached For and on b 

For Khandelwal Jain & Co. 
Firm Reg. No. 105049W 

Chartered AQCou an ' 

Partner 
M.No. 502570 
New Delhi, 01 June, 2020 

Director 
DIN: 01709943 

~ 
Company Secretary 

March 31, 

2019 
11,845 

4,34,85,360 
2,00,00,000 

6,34,97,205 

S'fq~ 
Subodh kumar Garg 

Director 
DIN: 00550825 

New Delhi, 01 June, 2020 



Oragonwave HFCL India Private Limited- Financial Statements 
(CIN: U64200DL2010PTC211117) 
{All amounts are in Rs.} 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

Particulars 

Balance as at March 31, 2018 
Changes in equity share capital 
Changes in accounting policy or prior 
period errors 
Restated balance at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
Dividends 
Transfer to retained earnings 
Any other change (to be specified) 
Balance as at March 31, 2019 
Changes in equity share capital 
Changes in accounting policy or prior 
period errors 
Restated balance at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
Dividends 
Transfer to retained earnings 
Any other change (to be specified) 
Balance as at March 31, 2020 

Equity Share Capital 

No. of Shares j Amount 

70,00,000 7,00,00,000 

70,00,000 7 ,00,00,000 

70,00,000 7,00,00,000 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Khandelwal Jain & Co. 
Firm Reg. No. 105049W 

(Manish 
Partner 
M.No. 502570 

New Delhi, 01 June, 2020 

Other Equity 

Reserves and Surplus 
Othe Comprehensive Income Total 

Retained Earnings 
Remeasurement of defined 

benefit rllans 
4,24,58,800 (5,35,496) 11,19,23,304 

(16,61,308) 17,099 (16,44,209) 

4,07 ,97 ,492 (5,18,397) 11,02,79,095 

(3,11,48,289) (2,17,972) (3,13,66,261) 

96,49,203 (7,36,369) 7 ,89,12,834 

Director 
DIN: 01709943 DIN: 00550825 

~ 
Company Secretary 

New Delhi, 01 June, 2020 
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Oragonwave HFCL India Private Limited- Financial Statements 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 
(All amounts are in Rupees) 

1. Corporate information 

Pursuant to a joint venture agreement dated October 18, 2010, entered into between HFCL Limited 

(formerly Himachal Futuristic Communications Limited) ('HFCL') and Dragon Wave Inc. ('Dragon Wave') a 

Canadian Company (the "JV Parties"), DragonWave HFCL India Private Limited ('the Company') was 

incorporated on December 6, 2010 to carry on the business of, sellers, buyers, importers, exporters, 

stockiest and distributors, all types of radio communication systems and associated products and related 

technical services. 

On October 21, 2019, the Joint Venture Agreement was mutually terminated which was entered with 

DragonWave Inc. (now known as DragonWave-X Inc., Canada) and HFCL Limited. 

Pursuant to cessation of the aforesaid Joint Venture Agreement, HFCL has acquired the balance stake of 

50.10% (comprising of 35,07,000 equity shares of face value Rs.10/- each) held in the Company, from 

DragonWave Pte. Ltd., Singapore, at a total consideration of Rs.2.25 crores, thereby making the 

Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HFCL Limited, w.e.f. December 17, 2019. 

2. Compliance with Ind AS 

These financial statements ('financial statements') have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 

Accounting Standard ('Ind AS') notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together 

with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time. 

Z.1. Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. 

There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020 

3. Significant accounting policies 

3.1. Basis of preparation 

3.1.1. Historical Cost Convention 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the 

followings: 

• certain financial assets and liabilities.and contingent consideration that is measured at fair 
value; 

• assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to sell; 

• defined benefit plans plan assets measured at fair value; and 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods 

and services. 



The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees except where otherwise stated. 

3.1.2. Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and judgements 
that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities 
as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the 
periods presented. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are 

Bi affected. 

'j 3.2. Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a ) 

above, or 
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
A liability is current when: 

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
b) It is held primarily forthe purpose of trading 
c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a ) above, 

or 
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

3.3. Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet 
date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.;:{((;:',,: , . 
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The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels as follows: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) 

This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. 

• Level 2 

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 2 inputs include the following: 

i. quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets. 

ii. quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active. 

iii. inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability. 

iv. Market - corroborated inputs. 

• Level 3 
They are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable 

related market data or Company's assumptions about pricing by market participants. Fair values are 

determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported 

by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on 

available market data. 

3.4. Property Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified as 

held for sale. 

PPE are stated at actual cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Actual cost is inclusive 

of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses for bringing the asset to its 

working conditions for its intended use (net of tax credit, if any) and any cost directly attributable to 

bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by the Management. It include professional fees and borrowing costs for qualifying assets. 

Significant Parts of an item of PPE (including major inspections) having different useful lives & material 

value or other factors are accounted for as separate components. All other repairs and maintenance 

costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 

Depreciation is provided for on Plant & Machinery and on other PPE on written down value method on 

the basis of useful life. On assets acquired on lease (including improvements to the leasehold premises), 

amortization has been provided for on Straight Line Method over the period of lease. 

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and if necessary, changes 

in estimates are accounted for prospectively. 

Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account ofcapit~I improvement or other 
' ,,'',', 

factors is provided for prospectively over the remaining useful life. /.. .-: :.:·.'.:::,';.'\ 
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The useful life of property, plant and equipment are as follows:-

Plant & Machinery 15 years 

Furniture & Fixtures 10 years 

Computers 3-6 years 

Office Equipment 5 years 

Vehicles 8 years 

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as 

owned assets or over the shorter of the assets useful life and the lease term if there is an uncertainty 

that the company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. 

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to 

arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 

item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of 

the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3.5. Intangible Assets 

(i) Intangible assets 

► Recognition of intangible assets 
a. Computer software 

Purchase of computer software used for the purpose of operations is cap.italized. However, any 

expenses on software support, maintenance, upgrade etc. payable periodically Is charged to the 

Statement of Profit & Loss. 

► De-recognition of intangible assets 

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, 

measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

asset, and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

► Amortisation periods and methods 
During the financial year 2019-20 the company has changed the amortisation method for Intangible 

assets and has moved from Written Down Value method to Straight Line method. Amortisation in 

case the company had continued with the old method would have been Rs. 2,03,354/-

3.6. Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity 



3.6.1. Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case offinancial assets not recorded 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. Purchases or sales offinancial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the 
asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories based 
on business model of the entity: 

• Debt instruments at amortized cost 

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

• Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL) 

• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

De-recognition 

A financial asset is de-recognized only when 

► The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
► retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a 

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognized. 

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has 
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, 
the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. 
In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used a practical 
expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision 
matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for 
forward looking information. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an 
amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected 
credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ 
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to the 
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and 
an equity instrument. 



Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial 
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with 
all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end 

of financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities 
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at 
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Loans and borrowings 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction 

costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is 
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements 
of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. 

3.7. Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 

Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's or cash-generating unit's {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 

risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions 
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is 
used. 

Impairment losses of continuing open:ttLons, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss. /'
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A previously recognized impairment loss (except for goodwill) is reversed only if there has been a 
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited to the carrying amount of the asset. 

3.8. Inventories 

Traded goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase 
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is 
determined on weighted average basis. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

3.9. Revenue ri:,cognition 

The company recognizes revenue in accordance with Ind-AS 115. Revenue is recognized upon transfer 
of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration 
that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. 
Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which may also refer as unbilled 
revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities {which may also refer 
to as unearned revenues). 

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and loss. 

► Interest income 

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and 
the interest rate applicable. Interest income is included under the head "other income" in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

3.10. Leases 

As a lessee 

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company 
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a 
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: 

i. the contract involves the use of an identified asset 
ii. the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through 

the period of the lease and 
iii. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset {"ROU") and 
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with 
a term of twelve months or less {short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and 
low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight­
line basis over the term of the lease. 



Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of 
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain 
that they will be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus 
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for 
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may 
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of 
the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless 
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such 
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset 
belongs. 

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease 
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not 
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. 
lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if 
the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 

lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows. 

As a lessor 

leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the 
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the 
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right­
of-use asset arising from the head lease. 

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease. 

Transition to Ind AS 116 

In March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
(Amendments) Rules, 2019, notifying Ind AS 116 - 'Leases'. This standard is effective from 1st April, 
2019. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. The lease expenses, 
which were recognised as a single amount (operating expenses), will consist of two elements: 
depreciation and interest expenses. The standard has become effective from 2019 and the Company 
has assessed the impact of application of Ind AS 116 on Company's financial statements and provided 
necessary treatments and disclosures as required by the standard. 

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of Rs. 
47.97 Lakhs and a lease)iability of similar amount. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the 
profit before tax, prt>fjtfcnt~·~ period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in 
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cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on 
account of lease payments. 

3.11. Foreign currency transactions 

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the 
economic environment in which it operates. 

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency (foreign currencies) are 
recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items 
denominated in foreign currency at the year end and not covered under forward exchange 
contracts are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. 

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference between the date of transaction and 
on settlement or on translation is recognized in the profit and loss account as income or expense. 

Non monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation difference on such assets 
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of fair value gain or loss. 

In case of forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the inception of such 
· contracts is amortized as income or expense over the life of the contract. Further exchange difference 
on such contracts i.e. difference between the exchange rate at the reporting /settlement date and the 
exchange rate on the date of inception of contract/the last reporting date, is recognized as 
income/expense for the period. 

Effective April 1, 2018 the Company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21- Foreign Currency 
Transactions and Advance Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of 
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income 
when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The effect on account 
of adoption of this amendment was Nil. 

3.12. Employee Benefits 

Short Term Employee Benefits 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly 
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are 
recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current 
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

Long-Term employee benefits 

Compensated expenses which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of period 
in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. 



Post-employment obligations 

i. Defined contribution plans 

Provident Fund and employees' state insurance schemes 

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a 
defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the 

plan at a predetermined rate (presently 12%) of the employees' basic salary. These contributions are 

made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. In addition, some 

employees of the Company are covered under the employees' state insurance schemes, which are 

also defined contribution schemes recognized and administered by the Government of India. 

The Company's contributions to both these schemes are expensed in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions. 

ii. Defined benefit plans 

Gratuity 

The Company provides for gratuity obligations through a defined benefit retirement plan (the 

'Gratuity Plan') covering all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested 

employees at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective employee salary 

and years of employment with the Company. The Company provides for the Gratuity Plan based on 

actuarial valuations in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19 "Employee Benefits ". The 

present value of obligation under gratuity is determined based on actuarial valuation using Project 

Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of 

employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. 

Defined retirement benefit plans comprising of gratuity, un-availed leave, post-retirement medical 

benefits and other terminal benefits, are recognized based on the present value of defined benefit 

obligation which is computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being 

carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. These are accounted either as current 

employee cost or included in cost of assets as permitted. 

Leave Encashment 

The company has provided for the liability at period end on account of un-availed earned leave as 

per the actuarial valuation as per the Projected Unit Credit Method. 

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans are recognized in OCI as and when incurred. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 

obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the 

statement of profit and loss. 

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if 

applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest as defined above),are recognized in 

other comprehensive income except those included in cost of assets as permitted in the period in which 

they occur and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. 

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Financial Statements represents the actual deficit 

or surplus in the Comp;inis_defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited 

({?) 
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to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of reductions in future contributions 
to the plans. 

Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

3.13. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as 
an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing offunds. 

3.14. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of- resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow 
of economic benefits is probable. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote. 

3.15. Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. The cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

3.16. GST/CENVAT 

The GST/CENVAT credit available on purchase of raw materials, other eligible inputs and capital goods 
is adjusted against GST/excise duty payable on clearance of goods produced. The unadjusted 
GST/CENVATcredit is shown under the head "short term loans and advances". 

3.17. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the period attributable 
to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is 
computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered 
for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could 

have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. ir·/} ' :/)~?~ 
\.\.,., '''~!;i)J 
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3.18. Income taxes 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable 
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It 
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Restated Consolidated 
Financial Information. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial 
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition 
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the 
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of 
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized 
or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are 
recognized only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary 

differences and losses. 

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and 
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements 
where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is 
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and 
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not 
probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be 
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a'legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset 
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Dividend distribution tax paid on the dividends is recognized consistently with the presentation of the 
transaction that creates the income tax consequence. 

3.19. Exceptional Items 

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from 
ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate 
disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company. 



DragonWave HFCL India Private Limited - Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rs.) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

4 Property, Plant and equipment & Capital Work-in-Progress 

Particulars 
Office Furniture Plant and 

Computers 
Egui~ments and Fixtures Machine!)'. 

Vehicle Total 

As at March 31, 2018 (Gross Carrying Value) 40,00,174 9,40,377 3,67,902 6,83,713 20,00,000 79,92,166 

Additions 95,810 85,700 1,81,510 

Disposals/ Adjustments 20,00,000 20,00,000 

As at March 31, 2019 40,95,984 9,40,377 3,67,902 7,69,413 61,73,676 

Additions 3,01,342 3,01,342 

Disposals/ Adjustments 

As at March 31, 2020 43,97,326 9,40,377 3,67,902 7,69,413 64,75,018 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment Computers 
Office Furniture Plant and 

Vehicle 
Egui~ments and Fixtures Machine!Y 

Total 

As at March 31, 2018 (Gross Carrying Value) 37,52,406 7,73,574 2,16,010 3,63,210 13,40,653 64,45,853 

Depreciation for the year 1,80,782 75,399 39,325 61,942 33,849 3,91,297 

Disposals/ Adjustments 13,74,502 13,74,502 

As at March 31, 2019 39,33,188 8,48,973 2,55,335 4,25,152 54,62,648 

Depreciation for the year 1,77,624 51,710 29,224 62,482 3,21,040 

Disposals/ Adjustments 

As at March 31, 2020 41,10,812 9,00,683 2,84,559 4,87,634 57,83,688 

Net Carrying Value 
Office Furniture Plant and 

Computers 
Egui~ments and Fixtures Machine!)'. 

Vehicle Total 

As at March 31,2019 1,62,796 91,404 1,12,567 3,44,261 7,11,028 

As at March 31, 2020 2,86,514 39,694 83,343 2,81,779 6,91,330 

1. Significant estimate: Useful life of tangible assets 

The Company has estimated the useful life of the tangible assets based on the expected technical obsolescence of such assets. However, the 

actual useful life may be shorter or longer than the life taken, depending on technical innovations and competitor actions. 
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DragonWave HFCL India Private Limited - Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rs.) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

5 The Following is carrying value of right of use assets recognised on date of transition and the movements thereof during the year 
ended March 31, 2020 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2019 
Additions 

Transition impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 "Leases" 
Deletion 

Depreciation 
As at March 31, 2020 

Building 

47,97,409 

14,76,126 
33,21,283 

Total 

47,97,409 

14,76,126 
33,21,283 

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 

Particulars 

Current Lease Liabilities 
Non-current Lease Liabilities 

Total 

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020: 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2019 
Additions 

Finance cost accrued during the year 
Deletions 

Payment of lease liabilities 
As at Mar~h 31, 2020 

Note: 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

Asat 

March 31, 2020 

47,97,409 
4,04,829 

16,27,500 
35,74,738 

The estimated impact of Ind AS 116 on the Company's financial statements at 31 March 2020 is as follows: 

14,42,171 
21,32,566 
35,74,738 

Balance sheet: The company estimates that the adoption of Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in total assets of Rs. 33,87,181/- as 

right-of-use assets amounting to Rs. 33,21,283/- and defereed tax assets Rs. 65,898/- and in Financial liabilities by Rs. 35, 74,738/-. 

Statement of profit and loss: The company estimates that the adoption of Ind AS 116 will result in increased depreciation of Rs. 

14,76,126/- from the right-of-use assets and increased finance costs of Rs. 4,04,829/- for the year due to the interest recognised on 

lease liabilities. These will offset the reduction in operating lease expenses of Rs. 16,27,500/- for the year, resulting in an overall net 
reduction of profit before taxes of Rs. 2,53,455/-. 

Statement of Cash flows: The Company estimates that the adoption of Ind AS 116 will result in payment of Lease Liabilities by Rs. 
16,27,500/- shown under Cash Flow from financing activities. 
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6 lntan ible Assets 
Particulars 

Application software 
Gross carrying value 
Opening balance 
Additions during the year 
Disposals/ adjustments/ transfer 

Less:Accumulated amortisation and impairment 
Accumulated amortization 
Opening balance 
Additions during the year 
Disposal/ adjustment/ transfer 

Net carrying Value 

1. Significant estimate: Useful life of intangible assets 

As at Mar 31, 2020 

34,71,252 

29,55,226 
4,17,513 

As at March 31, 2019 

34,71,252 

34,71,252 ------

26,06,131 
3,49,095 

33,72,739 ------

98,513 

34,71,252 

29,55,226 

5,16,026 

The Group estimates the useful life of the software to be 5 years based on the expected technical obsolescence of such assets. However, 
the actual useful life may be shorter or longer than 5 years, depending on technical innovations and competitor actions. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

7 Financial Assets - Loan Receivables 

Particulars 

Considered Good; 
Loans and Advances to Body Corporate 

Total 
Sub-classification of loans: 
(i) Loans Receivables considered good - Secured; 
{ii) Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured; 
{iii) Loans Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk; and 
(iv) Loans Receivables- credit impaired 

8 Deferred Tax Assets 

Particulars 

A. Deferred Tax Assets 
Related to Brought forward losses and unabosrbed Depreciation 
Others 

(A) 
B. Deferred Tax Liability 

Related to Depreciation on Fixed Assets and Amortisation 
Others 

Total 

9 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables considered good - Secured; 
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 
Trade Receivables- Credit Impaired 

less : Allowance for expected credit loss 
Total 

Break-up of security details 
(i) Secured, considered good; 
(ii) Unsecured, considered good; 
{iii) Doubtful 

Less: Impairment allowance for Trade Receivables 
Total 

9.1. Expected credit loss for Trade Receivables: 

Ageing 

Not Due 
0-180 days past due 
181-365 days past due 
More than 365 days past due 
Total 

(B) 

Asal 
March 31 2020 

6,50,00,000 

6,50,00,000 

6,50,00,000 

Asal 
March 31 2020 

1,71,276 
18,55,638 
20,26,914 

8,63,534 

8,63,534 
11,63,380 

Asal 
March 31 2020 

74,40,077 

41,86,763 
1,16,26,840 

41,86,763 
74,40,077 

74,40,077 
41,86,763 

1,16,26,840 
41,86,763 
74,40,077 

Gross Carrying Amount 

74,40,077 

4186 763 
1,16,26,840 

9.2 The credit period towards trade receivables generally ranges between 30 to 90 days. 

Asal 
March 31 2019 

Asal 
March 31 2019 

1,69,000 
5,91,S38 
7,60,538 

7,60,538 

Asat 
March 31 2019 

2,44,88,699 

2,44,88,699 

2,44,88,699 

2,44,88,699 

2,44,88,699 

2,44,88,699 

Expected loss rate 

9.3 ln determining the allowance for trade receivables the Company has used practical expedients based on financial 
condition of the customers, ageing of the customer receivables and over-dues, availability of collaterals and historical 
experience of collections from customers. The concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables is reasonably low as 
most of the customers are Government and large Corporate organisations though there may be normal delays in collections. 

9.4 The movement in allowances for doubtful debts is as under: -
Asal Asal 

31st March 2020 31st March 2019 

Expected Carrying 
credit loss amount of 
(Provision) Trade 

74,40,077 

4186 763 
41,86,763 74,40,077 
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Additions 
Write Off (net of recovery) 
Closing balance 

10 Current Financial Assets - Cash & cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Balance with banks; 
Cheques, drafts on hand; 
Cash on hands; 

Fixed Deposits with Bank ( Original maturity less than 3 months) 

Total 

11 Current Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances 

Particulars 

Fixed Deposits with Bank {Maturity less than 12 months) 

Total 

12 Current Financial Assets -Other Assets 

Particulars 

Interest accrued: 
On Fixed Deposits with Banks 
On Loan to Body Corporate 

Security Deposits, Unsecured, considered good; 
Retention money 

Total 

13 Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Advance tax/TDS{ net of tax) 
Total 

14 Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

Other Current Assets 
Prepaid Expenses 
Balance with government authorities 
Employee loan & Advances 

Total 

41,86,763 

41,86,763 

Asat 
March 31 2020 

38,13,269 

3,300 

38,16,569 

Asal 
March 31 2020 

Asat 
March 31 2020 

10,95,389 
2,69,487 
8,61,268 

22,26,144 

Asat 
March 31 2020 

68,85,375 
68,85,375 

Asal 
March 31 2020 

5,25,512 
19,79,200 

1,66,505 
26,71,217 

Asal 
March 31 2019 

4,34,85,360 

11,845 

2,00,00,000 

6,34,97,205 

Asat 
March 31 2019 

2,00,00,000 

2,00,00,000 

Asal 
March 31 2019 

2,44,751 

7,69,487 

10,14,238 

Asal 
March 31 2019 

51,49,188 
51,49,188 

Asat 
March 31 2019 

3,30,135 
8,27,229 
4,65,000 

16,22,364 
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15 Equity Share Capital 

As at March 31, 2018 
Increase during the year 
As at March 31, 2019 
Increase during the year 
As at March 31, 2020 

Particulars 

Movement in Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2018 
Add: Shares issued during the year 
Add: Bonus shares issued during the year 
Less: Share bought back during the year 
As at March 31, 2019 

Add: Shares issued during the year 
Add: Bonus shares issued during the year 
Less: Share bought back during the year 
As at March 31, 2020 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares 

No of Shares 
70,00,000 

70,00,000 

70,00,000 

(In Rupees) 
Amount 

7,00,00,000 

7,00,00,000 

7,00,00,000 

No of shares Equity Share Capital par 
value 

70,00,000 7,00,00,000 

70,00,000 7,00,00,000 

70,00,000 7,00,00,000 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding 

beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares. 

(i) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of Equity Shares 

Name of Shareholder 

DragonWave Ptc Limited 

Nil (31 March 2019: 3,507,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 

HFCL Ltimited* 

69,99,994 (31 March 2019: 3,493,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 

* Formerly known as Himacha/ Futuristic Communications Limited 

16 Other Equity 

Retained Earnings 
Othe Comprehensive Income 

(i) Retained Earnings 

Opening Balance 
Net profit for the year 
Closing Balance 

(ii) Othe Comprehensive Income 

Opening Balance 

Particulars 

Particulars 

Particulars 

Items of Other Comprehensive Income 
Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans 

Closing Balance 

%of 
Holding 

%of 
Holding 

As at March 31, 2020 

No. of share held 

69,99,994 
99.99% 

As at March 31 2020 
96,49,203 
(7,36,369) 

89,12,834 

As at March 31 2020 
4,07 ,97 ,492 
{3,11,48,289) 

96,49,203 

As at March 31 2020 
(S,18,397) 

(Z,17,972) 
(7,36,369) 

As at March 31, 2019 

No. of share held 
3,50, 70,000 

50.10% 

3,49,30,000 
49.90% 

As at March 31 2019 
4,07,97,492 

(S,18,397) 
4,02,79,095 

As at March 31 2019 
4,24,58,800 

(16,61,308) 
4,07,97,492 

As at March 31 2019 
{S,35,496) 

17,099 
(5,18,397) 
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17 Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions 

Particulars 

Provisions for Employee Benefits 
Gratuity 
Compensated Absences 
Total 

18 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables 

Particulars 

Trade Payables 
a) Due to Micro and Small enterprises (Refer note no. 31) 
b) Others 

Total 

19 Current Financial Liabilities - Others 

Particulars 

Other Payables 
Salaries & Wages payable 
Expenses Payable 
Payable to Employees 

Total 

20 Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 

Statutory Liabilities 
Total 

21 Current Liabilities - Provisions 

Particulars 

Provisions for Employee Benefits 
Gratuity 
Compensated Absences 
Total 

(~ 
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As at 
March 31 2020 

19,61,794 
9,78,131 

29,39,925 

As at 
March 31 2020 

10,99,973 
10,99,973 

Asat 
March 31, 2020 

24,41,529 
13,95,652 

1,92,245 
40,29,426 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

21,34,588 
21,34,588 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

1,31,101 
4,91,304 
6,22,405 

Asat 
March 31, 2019 

8,13,347 
13,93,019 
22,06,366 

As at 
March 31 2019 

19,16,383 
19,16,383 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

1,31,180 
19,01,049 
4,88,210 

25,20,439 

Asat 
March 31 2019 

7,68,225 
7,68,225 

Asat 
March 31 2019 

27,859 
40,919 
68,778 
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22 Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Sale of products 

Sale of services 

Total 

23 Other Income 

Particulars 

Other non-operating income 

Interest Income 

From Fixed Deposits/ Margin Money with Banks 

From Others 

Others -written back of excess provision/balances payables 

Total 

24 Other Direct Cost 

Particulars 

Cost of Site Survey, installation and commissioning services 

For the year ended 
Mar 31, 2020 

79,03,620 

79,03,620 

For the year ended 
Mar 31, 2020 

28,38,218 

12,17,099 

54,678 

41,09,995 

For the year ended 
Mar 31, 2020 

55,68,293 

55,68,293 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

2,42,42,228 

2,42,42,228 

For the year ended 
March 31 2019 

53,87,345 

1,89,16,087 

2,43,03,432 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

1,28,85,565 
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25 Employee benefits expenses 

Particulars 

Salaries, bonus and allowances 

Contribution to Provident and other funds 

Staff welfare expenses 

Total 

26 Finance costs 

Particulars 

Finance Costs: 

Interest to Banks 

Other Interest (Refer note no. 5) 

Bank Charges 

Total 

27 Other expenses 

Particulars 

Rent (Refer note no. 5) 

Auditors' Remuneration 

Statutory Audit 

Tax Audit 

Other Services 

Reimbursement of Expenses 

Legal and Professional Charges 

Communication Expenses 

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 

Power and Fuel & Water Charges 

Insurance Expenses 

Office and General Expenses 

Impairment allowance for trade receivables 

Miscellaneous Expenditure 

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 

Total 

For the year ended 

Mar31,2020 

2,00,67,347 

20,67,443 

8,29,965 

2,29,64,755 

For the year ended 

Mar 31, 2020 

5,98,896 

522 

5,99,418 

For the year ended 

Mar31 2020 

1,00,000 

50,000 

28,168 

3,97,453 

3,03,220 

30,04,784 

2,88,920 

6,01,071 

21,67,251 

41,86,763 

5,21,518 

5,68,454 

1,22,17,602 

28 Earning per Share (EPS)- In accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-33) 

Particulars 

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share 

Profit /(Loss) After Tax 

Profit Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders 

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares 

(used as denominator for calculating Basic & Diluted EPS) 

Nominal Value of Ordinary Share 

Earnings Per Share - Basic 

Earnings Per Share - Diluted 
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For the year ended 

Mar 31 2020 

(3,11,48,289) 

(3,11,48,289) 

70,00,000 

Rs. 10/­

(4.45) 

(4.45) 

For the year ended 

March 31 2019 

1,92,43,296 

20,70,478 

3,300 

2,13,17,074 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 

26,654 

1,36,106 

5,107 

1,67,867 

For the year ended 

March 31 2019 
15,49,992 

9,00,000 

1,00,000 

24,510 

34,49,151 

3,26,720 

42,05,402 

2,56,960 

16,15,249 

13,21,768 

14,00,000 

1,51,73,057 

For the year ended 

March 31 2019 

(16,61,308) 

(16,61,308) 

70,00,000 

Rs.10/­

(0.24) 

(0.24) 
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29 Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a 

higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materia!!y adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 

Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial 

statements. 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

1. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets 
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's 

e:<pected useful life and the e:<pected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired 

and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical e:<perlence with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such 
as changes in technology. Refer note no. 4 & 6 

2. Employee benefits 
Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits are evaluated with reference to uncertain events and based upon actuarial assumptions including among others discount rates, e;,i:pected rates of 

return on plan assets, e:<pected rates of salary increases, estimated retirement dates, mortality rates. The significant assumptions used to account for Employee benefits are described in Refer note no. 
30. 

3. Taxes 
Deferred tax assets are ~ecognized for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment 
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer 

note no. 8 
4. Contingencies 
On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies and obligations. Obligations relating to Project Executions is largely depends upon performance of 
services by respective contractors. For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial statements. loss contingencies that are considered 

possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the financial statements. Gain 
contingencies are not recognised until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable. Refer note no. 32 

s. Leases 

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement 

in assessing the lease term {including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. 

The Company determines the lease term as the non·cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise 

that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the !ease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to 

exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise 

the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. 

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. Refer note no. 5 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical e:<perience and other factors, including e:<pectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company 

and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

30 During the year, Company has recognised the following amounts in the financial statements as per Ind AS- 19 "Employees Benefits" : 

Defined Benefit Plan 

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee 
benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation and the obligation for leave encashment is recognised in the same manner as gratuity. 

Discount rate (per annum) 
Rate of increase in Compensation levels 
Rate of Return on plan assets 

Actuarial assumptions 

Average remaining working lives of employees (Years) 

Table showing changes In present value of obligations: 

Present value oft obligation as at the beginning of the year 
Acquisition adjustment 
Interest Cost 
Past Service Cost including curtailment Gains/losses 
Current Service Cost 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 

Table showing changes In the fair value of plan assets: 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 
Acquisition adjustments 
Expected return of plan assets 
Employer contribution 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on obligations 
Changes deducted 
Fair value of plan assets at year end 

Table showing actuarial gain /loss - plan assets: 

Actual return of plan assets 
Expected return on plan assets 
Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets 
Actuarial (gain )/ loss-plan assets 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Actuarial {gain)/ loss for the period - Obligation 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss for the period~ Plan assets 
Total (gain)/ loss for the period 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the year 

In Rupees 
Gratui 

For the year ended 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 
March 31, 2019 

6.80% 7.66% 
5.50% 5.50% 
N.A. N.A. 
16.79 14.79 

14,20,878 10,48,208 
Nil Nil 

1,16,879 81,026 
Nil Nil 

3,37,166 3,08,743 
Nil Nil 

2,17,972 (17,099) 
20,92,895 14,20,878 

Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 

N.A. N.A. 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Ni! 
Nil Nil 

2,17,972 (17,099} 
Nil Nil 

2,17,972 {17,099) 
2,17,972 (17,099) 

In Rupees 
Leave Encashment 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

6.80% 7.66% 
5.50% 5.50% 
N.A. N.A. 
16.79 14.79 

8,54,266 7,12,548 
Nil Nil 

77,188 5S,080 
Nil Nil 

2,38,206 2,36,961 
(35,753) (56,758) 

3,35,528 (93,565) 
14,69,435 8,54,266 

Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 

N.A, N.A. 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
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The amounts to be recognized in Balance Sheet: 

Present va!ue of obligation as at the end of the period 
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the peiriod 
Funded Status 
Unrecognised actuarial (gains)/ losses 
Net asset/ (liability) recognised in Balance Sheet 

Expenses recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss: 

Current service cost 
Past service cost (Vested Benefit) 
Interest Cost 
Net actuarial {gain)/ loss recogni2ed in the year 
Expected return on plan assets 
Curtailment and settlement cost /(credit) 
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 

March 2019to March 2020 
March 2020 to March 2021 
March 2021 to March 2022 
March 2022 to March 2023 
March 2023 to March 2024 
March 2024to March 2025 
March 2025 onwards 

20,92,895 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

3,37,166 
Nil 

1,16,879 
NII 
NII 
NII 

4,54,045 

1,31,101 
32,063 
28,555 
28,779 
28,898 

18,43,499 

14,20,878 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

3,08,743 
Nil 

81,026 
Ni! 
Ni! 
Nil 

3,89,769 

27,859 
21,189 
88,435 
21,173 
18,477 
18,489 

12,25,256 

14,69,435 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

2,38,206 
NII 

77,188 
3,35,528 

NII 
NII 

6,50,922 

4,91,304 
19,357 
14,592 
14,704 
14,666 

9,14,812 

8,54,266 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

2,36,961 
Nil 

55,080 
{93,565) 

Nil 
Nil 

1,98,476 

40,919 
63,569 
77,401 

1,00,634 
58,275 
58,728 

4,54,740 

Note-1: The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the 

employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuary. 

31 Disclosure required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the Act) are given as follows: 

Particulars 

a. Principal amount due 
b. Interest due on above 
c. Interest paid during the period beyond the appointed day 
d. Amount of interest due and payab!e for the period of delay in making payment without adding the interest specified under the Act. 
e. Al'Tiount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the period 

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid 

f. to small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Sec.23 of the Act 

As at March 31, 

2020 

NII 
Nil 
NII 

NII 
NII 

NII 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 

Note: The above information and that given in Note No. 18' Trade Payables' regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined on the basis of information available with the 
Company and has been relied upon by the auditors. 

32 Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Contingent Lia bill ties not provided for in respect of: 

Particulars 

(i) Unexpired Letters of Credit 
(ii) Guarantees given by banks on behalf of the Company 

(iii) Claims against the Company in dispute not acknowledged as debt 

""' March 31, 2020 

"' 
Nil 
Nil 

NII 

A, at 

March 31, 2019 

"' 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 

(a) The Company's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company and proceedings pendlng with Tax Authorities . The Company has reviewed a!! its pending litigations and proceedings and 
has made adequate provisions, wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilitles, wherever applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these 

proceedings to have a material imoact on its financial oosition. 

(b) The Company periodically reviews all its long term contracts to assess for any material foreseeable losses. Based on such review wherever applicable, the Company has made adequate provisions 
for these Jong term contracts in the books of account as required under any applicable law/accounting standard. 

(c) As at 31st March, 2020 the Company did not have any outstanding term derivative contracts. 

(bl Ca Ital Commitments 

Particulars 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) 

33 As required by Ind AS- 24 "Related Party Disclosures" 

(i). Name and description of related parties. 

Relationship 
(a l Holding Company 

(b) Joint Venturers: 

(c) Fellow Subsidiary: 

(d) Key management personnel : 

Name of Related Party 
Himachal Futuristic Communications Limited (from 17.12.2019) 

Himacha! Futuristic Communications Limited (ceased on 17.12.2019) 
OragonWave Pte Limited, Singapore, the holding Company (ceased on 17.12.2019) 

DragonWave S.A.R.L, Luxembourg (ceased on 17.12.2019) 

Yogesh Gupta (Company Secretary) 

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the auditors. 

Asat 
March 31, 2020 

"' 
NII 

(ii). Natllre of transactions - The transactions entered into with the related parties during the year along with related balances as at 31st March, 2020 are as under: 

Particulars 

Sales of Services 
Holding Company 

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel's 
ShortTerm Employee Benefit 
Post Employment Benefit 
Other Long Term Benefit 
Share Based Payments 

Vear ended March 
31, 2020 

50,00,000 

25,63,284 
53,880 

Amount Rs. 
Year ended March 

31, 2019 

Nil 

24,96,780 
49,896 

As at 
March 31, 2019 

Rs 

Nil 
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34 Segment Reporting 
The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its business segment separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. 
Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or !oss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. 

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of nature of products. 
l. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with the segment including inter-segment revenue. 
Ii. Expenses that are directly identifiable with the segment are considered for determining the segment result. 
iii. Expenses/ Incomes which are not directly allocable to the segments are included under un-a!locable expenditure/ incomes. 
iv. Segment results include margins on inter-segment sales which are reduced in arriving at the profit before tax of the company. 
v. Segment assets and liabi!ities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. Un-allocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the company as a 
whole and not allocable to any segment. 

Inter - Segment revenue :- Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the basis of transfer price agreed between the segments. Such transfer prices 
are either determined to yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotiated basis. 

The Company operates in single business segment and caters mainly to the needs of Indian market, hence there is no primerry and geographical segment. 

3S Corporate social responsibility expenses: 

Particulars 

Opening 
Gross amount to be spent by the Company during the year 

Amount spent during the year: 
Contribution on acqulsitlon of assets 
On other purposes 

Amount remained unspent: 

36 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

As at March 31, 

2020 

5,68,454 

5,68,454 

As at March 31, 
2019 

14,00,000 

1400 000 

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial 
liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and 
cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 

The Company's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company's senior management has the overall responsibility for the 
establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for deve!oping and monitoring the 
Company's risk management policies. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to 
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient 
funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions. 

The following table shows the maturlty analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance Sheet date. 

Notes Nos. Carrying amount 

As at March 31, 2020 
Trade payables 18 10,99,973 
Lease Liabilities 5 35,74,738 
Other liabilities 19 40,29,426 

As at March 31, 2019 
Trade payables 18 19,16,383 
Lease Liabilities 5 
Other liabilities 19 25 20,439 

Market Risk 

Less than 12 months 

10,99,973 
14,42,171 
40,29,426 

19,16,383 

25 20 439 

More than 12 
months 

21,32,566 

Total 

10,99,973 
35,74,738 
40,29,426 

19,16,383 

25 20439 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, 
currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. 

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. 

~(),; . ,o· :":el\': n ,. ».IXGAtlVIE.NTieUO~ S:E'lll.'S :O}l;(fS~ 
1. Price Risk 
Equity Price Risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments In order to manage its price risk arising The company doesn't hold any equity instruments as on the 
in equity securities. from investments, the Company diversifies balance sheet date. 
The company doesn't hold any equity instruments as on the balance sheet date. r, portfoUo ;, mocdaoco w;th the 1;m;1s 

set by the risk management policies. 

2. INTEREST RATE RISK 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial In order to manage its interest rate risk The As an estimation of the approximate impact of the interest rate 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's Company diversifies its portfolio in risk, with respect to financial instruments, the Company has 
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the accordance with the risk management calculated the impact of a 0.25% change in interest rates. A 0.25% 
Company's !ong-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. policies. increase in interest rates would have led to approximately an 

Company has Fixed deposits with Banks amounting to Rs. Nil as at March 31st, 2020 additional Rs.Nil gain for year ended March 31st, 2020 {Rs.0.01 Cr 
(Rs.4.00 Cr as at March 31st, 2019) gain for year ended March 31st 2019) in Interest income. A 0.25% 
Interest Income earned on fixed deposit for year ended March 31st, 2020 is Rs. 0.283 decrease in interest rates would have led to an equal but opposite 
Cr (Rs.0.539 Cr as at March 31st, 2019) effect. 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its 
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments. 

Trade Receivables 
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is 
assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. At 31 
March 2020, the Company had top 2 customers (31 March 2019: top 2 customers) that owed the Company more than INR 0.74 Cr (31 March 2019: 2.40 Cr) and accounted for approximately 100% (31 
March 2019: 98.40 %) of all the receivables outstanding. 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed 
for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 9. The Company does not hold collateral as 
security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as l~'f:-;·~:[~'·C~s.t9.~ers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely 

independent markets. 1?i.<-:;.:.:...:...: ... ;:t'.;~~ 
Financial Instruments and cash deposits i\/,/' \ r:f •, 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the management in ~c;1P{d?-P,f,~,r-'lYMM ~~ ny's1policy. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the management on 
an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the cont\~.\t~,tion of rlsli l~~~j fore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make 

payments. \.-'..'._.',. / '?""' t. 
,:< .-·~·">· _ _,.. ~0 h 
~S..:·'-'u;,cco~~· 
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The Company's ma:<imum e:<posure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in Note 10. 

Capital management 
Capital includes issued equity capital and share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capita! management is to ma:<imize 

the shareholder value. 

Particulars 
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 

Note No. INR INR 
Trade Payables 18 10,99,973 19,16,383 

Lease Liabilities 5 35,74,738 

Other Payables 19 40,29,426 25,20,439 

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 10 (38,16,569) (6,34,97,205} 

Deposits 
Total Debt 48,87,568 5,90,60,383 

Equity 7,89,12,834 11,02,79,095 

Total capital 7,89,12,834 11,02,79,095 

capital and Total debt 8,38,00,402 5,12,18,712 

Gearing ratio 5.83% -115.31% 

The Company manages its capita! structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital using a 

gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 

37 Financial Instruments bv category 

I) Loan Receivables 

HJ Trade Receivables 

!II} Cash and Cash equivalents 

IV) Other Bank balances 

V) Security deposit for utilities and premises 

VJ) Other receivables 

Total financial assets 

2) Financial llabilitles 

I) Lease liabilities 

I!) Trade payables 

Ill) Other liabilities 
Total Financial liabilities 

Fair Value measurement 

2 

2 

1 

2 

Fair Value Hierarchy and valuation technique used to determine fair value : 

6,50,00,000 

74,40,077 

38,16,569 

2,69,487 

24,01,730 

7,89,27,864 

35,74,738 

10,99,973 

40,29,426 
87,04,137 

2,44,88,699 

6,34,97,205 

2,00,00,000 

7,69,487 

2,44,751 

10,90,00,142 

19,16,383 

25,20,439 
44,36,822 

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and are categorized into level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 

inputs. 

38 Tax Reconclliation 

Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Account (before tax) 

Current Tax rate@ 26.00% (For 2019 26.00%) 

Adjustment: 
Provision/expenses for Employee Benefit and others 
Depreciation adjustment 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 
CSR Expenditure 
Provision for doubtful debts 
Sales Tax Disallowance 
Ind A5-116 Leases Impact 
Ind AS Impact on employee benefit 
Tax Provision as per Books 

FY 2019-20 
(3,15,51,131) 

3,34,668 
90,689 

1,47,798 
10,88,558 

65,898 
(56,673) 

FY 2018-19 
(17,38,296) 

(4,51,957) 

1,48,498 
51,845 
(44,351) 

3,64,000 

14,388 

4,446 
86,868 

39 The COV!D-19 pandemic has resulted in a significant decrease in the economic activities across the country, on account of lockdown that started on 25 March 2020. The Government has ordered 

temporarily closure of all non-essential businesses, imposed restrictions on movement of goods/material, trave! etc. These restrictions had substantially reduced company's operations and has 

impacted the Sales for the month of March 2020, April 2020 and May 2020. Though the operating cycle has been impacted but is in the nature of short term and wil! not impact company's ability to 

service its debts and other financial arrangements. Company's assets are safe and following up all adequate internal financial and operational controls. The management is monitoring the situation 

closely and has taken various steps for functioning of the operations. The Management has evaluated the impact on its financial statements and have made appropriate adjustments, wherever 

required on revenue, debtors and actuarial assumptions. In assessing the recoverability of its receivables, the Company has considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of 

these financial statements including economic forecasts. 

The above evaluations are based on scenario analysis carried out by the management and internal and external information available up to the date of approval of these results, which are subject to 

uncertainties that COVID-19 outbreak might pose on economic recovery. 

40 Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary and the figures have been rounded off to the near st ru 
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